
Monday, November 24, 2008

7:10 PM

Meeting Minutes 

City of Gahanna

200 South Hamilton Road

Gahanna, Ohio 43230

Council Committee Rooms

Finance Committee

Thomas R. Kneeland, Chair

Beryl D. Anderson

Thomas C. Evers

Shane Ewald

John McAlister

Nancy R. McGregor

David L. Samuel



Meeting Minutes November 24, 2008Finance Committee

Members  Present: Thomas R. Kneeland, Thomas C. Evers, Shane W. Ewald, John McAlister, Nancy R. McGregor, 

Beryl D. Anderson and David L. Samuel

Additional Attendees:

Karl Wetherholt, Terry Emery, Lt. Jeff Spence, Chief Dennis Murphy, Brandi Braun, 

Mayor Stinchcomb, General Williams, Jerry Isler, Anthony Jones, Isobel Sherwood, 

Matt Huffman, Tony Collins, Dwight McCabe, Tony Slanec, Press.

ISSUES - From Director of Development:

Olde Gahanna Vision Plan

Kneeland called the meeting to order; first item to discuss is the Olde Gahanna Vision 

Plan. Jones said this is an update to show Council the progress; we had been moving 

along quickly so we decided to pull back and make sure we had proper input; we had 

public meetings and received good feedback from a mailer we put out; we have done a 

survey and held stakeholders meetings; introduced Tony Slanec to discuss where we are 

going.  

Slanec handed out documents for review (copies are available in the Council Office); 

first is an outline of the plan process; he reviewed the outline's high points; said they 

looked at different communities in central Ohio like Dublin and Westerville to 

determine what makes their downtown a destination; we wanted to determine what we 

need to do to foster acceptance of  the vision plan so we got input from the stakeholders 

at a meeting; we ask them to prioritize issues by listing their top 5 wants and needs; we 

brought in key property owners and ask them to do the same thing; the second handout 

is a document with the feedback from these stakeholders; we took this information back 

to committee to use for discussion to come up with planning principles that define what 

the stakeholders want in the plan based on their listed strengths and weakness; the 

business district suggestions were as follows; to market the total district instead of 

individual businesses; diversify housing by having townhomes and single family 

residences; spur development and foster mixed use; increase density; create pedestrian 

and green environments; provide improved green strategies; display public art like the 

community of Columbus, Indiana; they have art displayed everywhere and it creates a 

buzz; use urban design principles; better multimodal integration for vehicles and 

pedestrians and restrict truck traffic on Mill Street; we talked about parking; most feel 

it is not easy to find; new visitors can't find the garage; need on street parking; at our 

second meeting in July we reviewed planning principles and potential development; we 

decided as a group that we did not receive enough feedback so we sent out 100 mailers; 

we got 17 responses; added this information to the initial S.W.O.T. (Strengths, 

Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats) analysis; our meeting in September was 

promoted more and we had better attendance; we did a survey on site and at Seekers 

Cafe the next day; we narrowed the scope of all we had heard from folks and organized 

it into a plan; this is the handout labeled "Draft" where all this is listed; shows that 

what we heard from the steering committee and business owners was consistent. Evers 

asked who were the folks in attendance at the meetings. Huffman said they were the 

residents. Mayor asked for the attendance sign up list to be distributed to Council. 

Evers said so that lists all who were there. McGregor said it was a lot of the residents. 

Huffman said some even came from outside the area. Slanec said the next handout is the 

Vision Plan Key Recommendations; provides the locations for potential development 

areas; this is not a master plan like the one from 1997 to say how and where 

development will occur; it is just a tool with some recommendations for parking, 

Page 2City of Gahanna Printed on 11/26/2008



Meeting Minutes November 24, 2008Finance Committee

signage, safer modality, landscaping, boundary identity, ideas to promote a mix of uses 

and create a more walkable environment, incorporate art, promote a mix of housing 

types, make it affordable and market the district as a whole; this is yet to be adopted; 

our next meeting is in December or January where we will adopt the recommendations. 

Samuel said the traditional neighborhood design in southern cities is mixed use and 

connected; have you looked at that. Slanec said yes; it helped us gain a perspective; 

they usually have increased density and walkable environments; parks are a go to 

destination; next is how to get it done. Huffman said the importance of this is to plan for 

future generations; we do not want strip mall centers here; would like a setting more 

along the line of what Councilman Samuel was referring to. Samuel said this is how it 

was in the good old days when everyone talked to neighbors; spent time on the front 

porch; social interaction was fostered by having a sidewalk to take walks; that is 

already the kind of environment in Olde Gahanna and it can be improved on. Kneeland 

asked how much discussion was about parking signage and availability. Slanec said it 

is perceived there is enough and if you know about the garage there is; if you're new, or 

a visitor, it is different; public lots and way finding signs are needed. Kneeland said 

metering requires enforcement so I am not in favor of that. Huffman said when you talk 

to businesses they disagree; they want metered parking. Anderson asked what is meant 

by public art; is that fine art; in Rhode Island they have areas for performing arts. 

Slanec said we are wide open on that; nothing specific is determined. Anderson asked 

how were these items prioritized. Slanec said it is shown on the last pages of the 

S.W.O.T. analysis; the top 5 wants and needs for each sector; they were prioritized by 

the listed attendees where they were asked to mark the most important. Samuel asked if 

set backs and parking lots in front of locations on Granville Street were discussed. 

Slanec said we heard more about the preference for a pedestrian environment with side 

or rear parking. Samuel said east of Shull there is a new project for a school that will 

that have the building up to the street; this is a pedestrian environment so how do we 

separate the vehicles from the people. Slanec said probably have them parallel; curb 

cuts are conflict zones so we should keep them to a minimum. Anderson said the current 

parking signs are not obvious; she sponsored a group and the folks missed the garage; 

signage is key. Huffman said the design was done in order not to have it stand out; 

incorporated the parking into the project; signage is there, just in a more pleasing 

environment. McGregor said she did not attend the last meeting but still wants no 

parking on Granville Street. Emrey said new signage for parking was just received and 

will be going up in the next couple of days. Samuel asked what does the garage sign 

say. Emery said it is the same as what is currently there. McGregor said they do not say 

underground and it needs to say that; people look in a different place for underground 

parking. Kneeland said so this has been the steps in the process of the plan; now where 

does it go. Jones said the next step will be to meet for draft approval to update any 

detail; we will have another opportunity to go over the plan and get Council comments. 

McGregor said the purpose of this discussion today is, if you have comments, you can 

say them now. Huffman said Planning Commission did not come up with any thing else. 

Evers asked when is the next meeting. Slanec said he didn't know yet; may be pushed to 

January. Kneeland asked what is the date for the draft to be finished. Jones said by the 

end of January; any other feedback should be received by the end of first quarter; it 

goes back in committee by the end of Feburary or March. Kneeland said comments 

could go to Huffman.

PENDING LEGISLATION

ORD-0270-2008 TO ZONE 27.9+/- ACRES AS M-1, MANUFACTURING; FOR PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 5847 TAYLOR ROAD AS PART OF CENTRAL PARK AND 

ADDITIONAL ADJACENT PARCELS; VALUE RECOVERY GROUP II, LLC, 

OWNER.

Page 3City of Gahanna Printed on 11/26/2008

http://gahanna.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=L&ID=10261


Meeting Minutes November 24, 2008Finance Committee

Kneeland said Ordinance-0270 is for 5847 Taylor Road; Dwight McCabe is here to 

answer any questions. McCabe said this is a piece of property that has been allowed to 

be annexed; now we need to get it up to current zoning; we have not been in front of 

Planning Commission; our intention is to do a plat next so our interest is to move 

forward with the rezoning; we have prospective users and contracts out there who need 

to know what restrictions apply; if the timing takes longer than our interested parties 

would like, we may have to come before the Planning Commission the first of the year 

and ask for an overlay. Kneeland asked for any questions; since it is the pipeline it 

should be ok.

Recommended for Adoption, Consent

ORD-0172-2008 TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT WITH 

ADVANCED CIVIL DESIGN, INC., FOR ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR 

LINCOLN CIRCLE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS; AND TO DECLARE AN 

EMERGENCY.

Wetherholt said the previous Lincoln Circle Ordinance paid the design consultants for 

work to date; now we need to continue with completing the design and get an ordinance 

for the project in 2009. McGregor said at the public hearing only 3 people came, so this 

is evidently not a concern. Kneeland said he wondered how many people knew about 

the meeting as there was no sign trailer flashing the information;  just a post on the 

community bulletin signs. Ewald said he was aware the turnout was low but the meeting 

announcement was in the paper; said he felt they were aware of the plan but there is not 

a lot of opposition. Kneeland recommended regular agenda. Sherwood said this would 

have to be amended by substitution to change the dollar amount. McGregor said the 

cost was to be $15,000; we just authorized $12,000 and now $11,000 more is requested. 

Wetherholt said the original design was different concepts; a portion of this will need to 

be deducted from the August proposal requiring a substitute ordinance; however is not 

a complete substitute of the Ordinance-0263.

Recommended for Substitution and Adoption

ORD-0246-2008 TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

WITH CDW-G FOR THE PURCHASE OF AUTOMATED VEHICLE LOCATORS 

FOR THE MARKED POLICE FLEET; TO WAIVE BIDDING PROCEDURES 

THEREFOR; TO SUPPLEMENTALLY APPROPRIATE FUNDS THEREFOR; AND 

TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY.

Kneeland said he had requested this issue be returned to committee; he is ok with this 

now. Evers asked what was your question. Kneeland said different departments were 

looking at different solutions; now everyone is on board with this as the universal 

solution which I felt was important. Emery said he was very impressed with what he has 

seen. Sherwood said this would have to be amended by substitution as there is a 

different dollar amount. 

Recommendation:   2nd Reading, Consent.

Recommended for Substitution and Adoption

ORD-0271-2008 TO AMEND CODE SECTION 1163.07, PARKING SPACES FOR PEOPLE WITH 

DISABILITIES; OF CHAPTER 1163, PARKING REGULATIONS, OF THE 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GAHANNA.

Jones said this ordinance is to bring our Code in line with State Code for disability to 

make sure we are up to date. Kneeland said so with this change, are we in compliance 

everywhere in the city. Jones said he would need to look into it to see if any did not 

work and get back to Council. Anderson asked what was the specific language of the 

amendment. Sherwood said the amendment was attached to the ordinance.

Page 4City of Gahanna Printed on 11/26/2008

http://gahanna.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=L&ID=10091
http://gahanna.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=L&ID=10218
http://gahanna.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=L&ID=10262


Meeting Minutes November 24, 2008Finance Committee

Recommended for Adoption, Consent

ORD-0276-2008 TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE 

CONTRACT WITH ELLEN L. LEPERA, TRUSTEE, FOR THE PURCHASE OF 

1.931+/- ACRES LOCATED TO THE REAR OF 496 EAST JOHNSTOWN ROAD; 

TO TRANSFER FUNDS THEREFOR; AND TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY

Collins said this ordinance is to purchase the LePera property at 496 East  Johnstown 

Road; Euton had presented the details previously; we started 2 years ago; this 

agreement is for the back 2 acres that will connect Larry Lane to Hamilton; this is the 

connection for Old Gahanna to the Hamilton Road bike path. McGregor asked if it 

provided access to Johnstown Road.  Collins said no. Kneeland said this will really be 

nice for residents of central Gahanna. Sherwood said this also needs amended by 

substitution because of  the survey map and legal description.  Anderson said she 

needed the attachment to the ordinance. Sherwood said it was provided in the previous 

weeks packet. Evers provided a copy.

Recommendation:   2nd Reading, Consent.

Recommended for Substitution and Adoption

ISSUES - From Chief of Police:

MDC Grant Request

Lt. Spence said this is a request to equip the remainder of our fleet with Toughbook 

mobile computers and hardware; this is an " in kind" grant from the administrator 

which is CODSS (Central Ohio Data Sharing Subcommittee) so there is no need for a 

supplemental or funds. McAlister asked  if CODSS received the money for the grant 

from the Department of Justice COPS office which is the federal government. Spence 

said yes. 

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Regular Agenda

Law Enforcement Trust Fund - GPS Purchase

Chief Murphy said this is a request  for a supplemental appropriation in the amount of 

$6,500 from the FLETF (Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund) to be used to purchase 

a GPS tracking device; we already have one; it is used by detectives to track suspects 

and stolen property; the City was hit hard last month with stolen property cases; we 

have organized groups working here; this allows us to follow the suspect using stolen 

credit cards; this purchase would allow us to tract multiple suspects. McAlister asked if 

this is attached to the suspect's car. Chief said yes. 

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Regular Agenda.

ISSUES - From Director of Emergency Management:

Urban Area Security Initiative Grant

Williams said he had met with the Urban Area Security Initiative Grant's executive 

office and would like to clarify a point; the Grant is for $430,000; they broke it into 2 

segments; it wasn't clear if we needed a special request for the second part but we do 

not have to submit a request per our intergovernmental  agreement; they will be making 

the awards of next year's money on December 9 so it may be coming in to us in late 

December; I would like to have legislation ready to accept the $338,000 portion; we 

need to be ready and have all the necessary paperwork done so we can proceed after 

Page 5City of Gahanna Printed on 11/26/2008

http://gahanna.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=L&ID=10269


Meeting Minutes November 24, 2008Finance Committee

the first of the year; this is for the modifications to the dispatching center and for 

hardware and radios from Motorola; if we order on January 2, we will not get them 

until March; if we have it done conditionally and held in abeyance for the award letter, 

then we can enact quickly. Sherwood said if the letter comes in late December, we can 

have a January 2 first reading and pass with emergency on January 17. McAlister 

asked if the Urban Area Security Initiative is getting the money from the 798 million 

dollars earmarked for the 62 high risk high density urban areas. Williams said our 

monies are from a 4 million grant to Franklin County, contiguous counties, and 

Morrow County to be used for a number of activities.

Recommendation:  1st Reading on January 2, 2009

ISSUES - From Director of Public Service:

AEP Quarterly Update

Emery said here is the quarterly report we provide to Council with information from 

AEP based on requests received; it is as early as July 2005 with some storm 

information; also included is how Westerville handles it; if you have questions we can 

field them and get an answer from AEP; they were invited but couldn't be here. 

Kneeland said he wanted to know about Westerville; it appears they fared much better. 

Ewald asked that when we talk to AEP we get an idea on how much their increases will 

be and what they are going to do with that funding. Mayor said she thought a marketing 

piece was available to explain it. Emery said the increase is in jeopardy; the PUCO 

(Public Utilities Commission of Ohio) is really scrutinizing it; so it may be premature to 

request that information. Ewald said we should wait until the PUCO has responded; it 

looked like a done deal. Emery said the economy has had that effect; all utilities have 

submitted plans for increases and the PUCO is hearing evaluations. Emery said he will 

continue to provide reports.

ISSUES - From Director of Finance:

Authorization of Transfers

Isler said we were informed by our auditors at a meeting that they want a separate 

transfer ordinance for money between funds even though they are all authorized in the 

original appropriation ordinance; some are already made so we are reauthorizing what 

is already done; some are not the full amounts; we won't know correct figures until the 

end of the year due to vacations and other issues. Evers said so what  do we do in that 

case. Isler said it is still an estimate until the end of year. Kneeland said so how do we 

pass legislation based on an estimate. Isler said it is done as a set aside not to exceed. 

Evers said then they can correctly follow the audit trail. Isler said this is a new policy 

since we have a new State Auditor; the list of transfers can be found in the report. 

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Consent; no need to come back; 2nd Reading, Consent.

Supp. App./Tax Increment Equivalent Fund

Isler said this is a supplemental appropriation from the Tax Increment Fund (TIF); the 

amounts are unknown during initial appropriations so we estimate what we will be 

paying out to the schools and developers; now it is recalculated for what we received in 

the TIF accounts; it is considerably higher, but it is just a pass through; we are just 

providing them their share.

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Consent; no need to come back; 2nd Reading, Consent.

Page 6City of Gahanna Printed on 11/26/2008



Meeting Minutes November 24, 2008Finance Committee

Supp. App./Street Fund

Isler said this is a supplemental for the Street Fund; we get our monies here from 

license plates and the gas tax and they are not up to plan; best estimate is we will be 

$85,000 short; I am asking for a "not to exceed" $100,000 since I don't know for sure 

but this will allow us to continue operations going into winter months.  

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Consent; no need to come back; 2nd Reading, Consent.

Supp. App./Inheritance Tax

Isler said it has always been our practice to transfer inheritance funds and estate tax to 

the Capital Improvement Fund; that is the funds only source of revenue; so money 

earned over a lifetime can be used  in a project to last a lifetime. 

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Consent; no need to come back; 2nd Reading, Consent.

Supp. App./Stormwater Fund

Isler said my last item is a supplemental for the Stormwater Fund; we did an advance 

from the General Fund for the McKenna Creek Study and it has to be paid back. 

Recommendation:  1st Reading, Consent; no need to come back; 2nd Reading, Consent.

ISSUES - From Clerk of Council:

Liquor Permit - Wine Guy Wine Shop LLC

Sherwood said we have a liquor permit transfer request for the Wine Guy Wine Shop 

and I know of no objection by the police; this will be a motion resolution. 

Recommendation:  Motion Resolution, Consent Agenda.

Liquor Permit Renewals

Sherwood said this is informational only; at the end of the year, liquor control gives us 

the option to object to any licenses issued; the police have none; there is a list of all the 

permits if anyone wants a copy; we are taking a photo of Council; we could do it after 

next week's meeting; or do it January 2; the parade information was in your packet; 

only one person responded. Kneeland said previously we discussed this. Sherwood said 

Council does not have an individual float; they ride the City float. Anderson said she 

will participate.  

Meeting Adjourned.

Della Brandenberger, Reporting

Page 7City of Gahanna Printed on 11/26/2008


